TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
JANUARY 19, 2009

7:00PM: Reid Simpson, Barbara Clark, Judy Cash &y WWaldron.
ATTENDING: Selectmen Richard S. Poelaert and David R. Penlte(Matthew B. Dworman-absent).

Others Attending: Cheryll Hurteau, Barbara Whiterliara Clark, Judy Cash, Sharon & Roby Day and
R. Reid Simpson.

Mr. Poelaert called this Selectmen’s Public Meetmgrder at 6:30PM in the absence of Matthew
Dworman.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Public & NohlituMeeting Minutes dated 1/4/2010.
Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutesréaten. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to approve and sign the non-public meeting minagewritten. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 2-O0.

REGISTER: The Board reviewed the check registers. Mr. PéME&TIONED to approve and sign the
check register dated 12/31/09 in the amount of 8215, and 1/08-1/14/10 in the amount of
$133,779.73. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion ca2i€d

FINANCIAL AUDIT: The Board reviewed the auditing contract with Rlk& Sanderson. Mr. Pendell
MOTIONED to approve and authorize Mr. Poelaert to sigrctivgract (original & copy) as submitted.
Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION : The Board reviewed the Special Permit Applicafimnthe State
of NH. Mr. PendeIMOTIONED to approve and authorize Mr. Poelaert to sigragp@ication provided
by Dragon Mosquito. Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motiarried 2-0.

It was noted the State of NH has reimbursed thenT®8y760.50 for a partial reimbursement of the
contract year 2009.

VETERANS' EXEMPTIONS: The Board reviewed veterans’ exemptions. It wasahall seven of the
applicants have met all of the necessary critenidhfe $500 credit for the 2010 tax year.

Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve and sign the following veterans’ exeomst

MBL #04-01-20, Herbert & Barbara Clough, 137 DeRot
MBL #08-02-19-37, Richard Blauvelt, 19 Cricket HRH.
MBL #02-06-14, Marshall and S. Elaine Bean, 2 Cd3dy
MBL #08-02-31, Robert F. Bean, 37 Maplevale Rd.

MBL #16-02-04-16, Karl & Mary Vanveen, 16 Autumn.Ln
MBL #09-06-01, Matthew & Yolanda Napolean, 50 DePRok
MBL #10-03-14, Jessica Dixon, 84 Haverhill Rd.

Mr. Pendell seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 1



SELECTMEN'S INSERT: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s Insert to beiged at the deliberative
session. Mr. PoelaeMOTIONED to approve and sign the insert as presented. &rdéll seconded.
Motion carried 2-0.

BUDGET/DEFAULT WARRANT: The Board reviewed the budget and warrant for Z008ignature.
Mr. PoelaertMOTIONED to approve and sign the budget and warrant agmies. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 2-0. It was noted the budgd warrant would be posted and provided to the
appropriate parties. It was also noted two citizpesitions were received, one to change the posibf

fire chief from full-time to part-time, and a regatibn to have a vote on the definition of marriagkeey

are warrant article numbers #16 & #17 on the warran

PLANNING BOARD: The Board acknowledged receipt of the 12/17/0@rifey Board meeting
minutes for their review. The Board was also paded with a copy of the report from Plan NH for thei
review.

The Board acknowledged receipt of a letter daté@d910 from Planning Board Secretary Barbara
White, inquiring whether the Board agreed as lositha Vice Chairman of the Planning Board is aheo t
Interim Fire Chief, would it be okay if another migen of the fire department would not have to attend
the meetings, and would only if the Vice Chairmaaswnable to attend.

Mr. Pendell stated he had no problem either wayh&teno issue with it, but would want to discuss it
with both Ed (the Interim Fire Chief) and Matt (tbeputy Fire Chief), and if they are okay withhg

has no issue with it. Barbara White agreed to atriid on Wed., and also check with the Planningr@oa
Chairman, Dave Sullivan. Mr. Poelaert agreedig inkay with Mr. Sullivan & Mr. Warren, he is fine
with it.

LIBRARY: The Board acknowledged receipt of the Library Teasvieeting Minutes dated 09/15/09,
08/28/09, & 06/17/09, further noting they did naeehin July, therefore, there are no minutes fbyr. Ju

DRA: The Board acknowledged receipt of a letter daigd3J10 from DRA stating for the tax year 2009
the equalization rate has been set at 100%, nutfitfigthe completion of the revaluation conductedhosy
assessors, Avitar Associates, we are where wediheylat 100%.

FIRE DEPT.: It was noted the Interim Fire Chief has providee office with a Duty Schedule as
approved by the Board of Selectmen, and also peavath inventory of equipment returned by the former
Fire Chief to Mr. Warren, upon termination of hmmgoyment. It was noted everything has been turned
in.

DEVELOPER: It was noted the Board of Selectmen had askedMite to attend tonight’s meeting
and he did not, so Mr. Pend®IOTIONED for the Building Inspector to not do any inspeesaintil he
meets with the Board of Selectmen. Mr. Poelaebrséed. Motion carried 2-0.

INSURANCE: It was noted a claim was filed with the Town’surence company for repairs to the
ambulance and fire station garage door when damvagelone with the ambulance being backed into the
garage after a call.

It was noted an insurance check was received ianaunt of $823.50 plus $1,000 deductible, forltota
of $1,823.50 to cover the cost of the repairs éambulance ($928.50) and door of fire station {333).

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 2



TOWN OFFICES BLDG.: The Adm. Asst. provided the Board with a quoterfi@rotection One to
replace smoke/heat alarms in the Town Offices BuydThe quote also included upgrading the fire
panel.

After discussion, the Board agreed to researclsadsipgrading the system, and Mr. Poelaert
MOTIONED to authorize the replacement of the smoke/heattsts at a cost of $675.00. Mr. Pendell
seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

The Board also acknowledged a quote from NE Codbn&1,320 to correct the heating concerns with
the Town Clerk’s Office. Mr. Pendell stated he lcadtacted them directly and received an in depth
explanation of the problem and how they plan toesdrit.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve the expenditure of $1,320 to fix thebpem and paying the invoice
after it has been determined the problem has beed.Mr. Poelaert seconded. Motion carried 2-0.

EKFA: The Board acknowledged a letter from the East &tioig Firemen’s Association addressed to the
Police Department, offering praise to Police Offscklark lannuccillo and Peter Kokaras for assistineg
Santa(s) drive around Town on Christmas Eve.

Mr. Pendell mentioned the great job the Santa)wlhich is provided by the EK Firemen’s Associatio
annually on Christmas Eve, where they ride aroonmieet and greet the children of East Kingston. Mr
Poelaert noted it is a nice New England traditiwat the EKFA has done for decades, and suggested a
nice letter be sent expressing their appreciatfensuggested next year the newspaper write ateartic
about it, as he knows that they have been doifuy dver 40 years!

CALENDAR: Dates noted: 1/20-1/22 Auditors, 2/2 DeliberaBassion, 7:00PM at EKES.

BUDGET: At 7:00PM, Reid Simpson, Barbara Clark, & SharoR&by Day joined the meeting to
discuss concerns of the budget. It was noted Tvéaldron & Judy Cash were also on the agenda, but
Tracy would not be coming, as she was attendindpaty Trustee meeting, and Judy Cash may not be
coming.

Mr. Poelaert asked them to begin. Reid Simpsondiaéewould be recording the meeting.

Roby Day stated he was there on behalf of Hank belaski, who couldn’t be here. Roby asked to
speak on behalf of Hank. Roby stated he has lelghfat good government is transparent and medsure
by performance.

He noted that Hank had stated the last time tlaisalwere listed in the Town Report was 1993,iand
left no doubt on how the money is being spent. sked for it to be published in the 2008 report, thiet
Board decided not to, and again in 2009 he formalipiested that it be included in the Town Reot.
the record, he wants to know tonight if it is gotogbe in the report.

Mr. Pendell noted that Hank had been sent a Istéding the information will be in the Town Report.
Roby continued with stating there are some incoaisgses with the budget worksheets. He thinks the
hourly rates are generous. He thinks that theypange of the highest paid in NH, referring to tHeNWA

records. He stated the Town has a populationG8f(®,and the salaries are out of proportion. Heddd
comparing full-time with part-time salaries, thew distorted.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 3



Roby asked what year the Selectmen decided to dg aith performance reviews? He suggested
reinstating the reviews and to seek outside helm iNHMA to audit the compensation and
responsibilities of employees. He added you woeelttieo be able to justify to the voters.

Roby further stated that Hank is unable to attemight, and thought the budget handout was skeleton
and misleading. He thought the Selectmen did nderstand the budget. He added prior Selectmen knew
the budget line item by line item, and could ansquerstions with authority.

He thinks the Selectmen have not done their homevamd suggested they provide voters with a budget
proposal that doesn’t hide anything and not todmeetive.

He is at a loss as how Hampton Falls, a Town ofiairsize, can provide complete information at thei
budget hearing held on 1/13/10.

Mr. Pendell asked how many years has Reid pasdaadiget worksheets, and he replied six years. Mr.
Pendell asked why this now?

Reid questioned the Selectmen’s budget workshests 2006 stating 910 to 2007 with 780 hours. He
said he had never seen the budget worksheets psfohe didn’t ask before now. He said the remginin
hours are unaccounted for.

In fairness, he wants it to be accurate and topokeant with it. He asked where is the rest of theney
coming from? Mr. Pendell responded he will lootoiit.

Barbara Clark stated she had given a list of qoestio Mr. Pendell, and Mr. Poelaert added he was n
asked or given any list.

Judy Cash arrived at 7:15PM.
Barbara Clark inquired as to how it will be refledtin the Town Report?

Mr. Poelaert stated they will meet with Matt (thea@man) upon his return and look at it. They woist
a work session.

Reid asked for a copy of how the salaries will &igected in the Town Report. It was noted informati
has been provided to the printer.

Mr. Poelaert stated they will relay the informattonMatt, and get answers for them. He added nolxdy
hiding anything. You know better than that. Reisp@nded, “I want to know!”

Barbara Clark stated the Selectmen’s Office s&d€ived 22%, and 17% raises. Mr. Poelaert resgbnde
that was when Don Clark retired, and the respolitsgisi were taken on by the Selectmen’s Officefstaf

Barbara Clark stated the salary is exorbitant,ferdob is just as important.
Roby stated he is surprised that any raises wesngine cent more in 2010. Roby asked when was ther
a discussion to eliminate the performance revieRa?y added you threw out a superb tool. Mr. Potlaer

responded it has not been done while he has been he

Roby responded you are the governing body, andcgatfix it.
Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 4



Mr. Pendell stated he has spoken with many peaplé has heard that they are unhappy with other
employees in Town. Mr. Pendell added they gav&adse across the board, with two Selectmen
unemployed, and he thought it was very generowsaddled he is not taking compensation away from
people, and that would create a slippery slope.

If you get a complaint about Reid and take awaynffom, then he complains about Barbara, and if you
start taking away from people, everybody has tcebdy to take away.

Roby suggested using an outside agency vs. thelRd&electmen.

Mr. Pendell noted the Salary Review Committee ravemds salaries for all of the elected officials. He
added they had a trash committee to review trastrads this year. He stated that to put a range of
salaries in place, it is a process.

Mr. Poelaert noted Barbara is an elected offiaml at the end of her term, she can be dumped. #iedad
she has held the position, so probably no onerwillagainst her, and so the salary review commigtee
recommending her to full-time with benefits thisaye

Tracy Waldron’s salary is set by the Library Tresteand the Police Chief and Judy Cash are under th
control of the Selectmen. Reid added, and the cardretaff at the Selectmen’s Office.

Mr. Poelaert noted when the Selectmen’s salarydiszsissed, it was voted down.

Barbara Clark stated residents will be unhappy wheg hear about the raises.

Sharon Day added she is not saying that Deb & Qtag’t work hard. You interject an emotional igsu
that shouldn’t be there. Experience and educatmhkaowledge count, but you need to eliminate the

personality issues.

Mr. Poelaert agreed to look at it. Roby stateavhats a range scale with a review. He added the
performance evaluations should be tied to the gdzdptions.

Mr. Poelaert stated we will make a super humarrttifoget into it, and will talk about it.

Reid stated that he can not personally back offfeaand his employees have been treated unfairly.

He added | guess if you don’t ask, you don’'t getiee added he wants them to know that this hasdrav
wedge between the lines of communication. It ispewsonal, he does not want to see them loose thei
jobs, and he just wants answers.

Mr. Poelaert noted that first Hank pushed it, beeaduwe was after Reid.

Mr. Pendell added that when former Selectman Cesasputting together a contract for review for Reid
with stipulations, Reid wouldn’t sign it. He addén stipulations came with compensation tied tbid.
added Reid wanted an 8% pay raise for himselfytbés. He didn’t have a problem, and now it's aniéss

Reid said he just wants to find out.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 5



Mr. Pendell noted Reid has had the last six yealsak at those questions, but is talking aboutBbard
not doing due diligence. He could have asked before. Reid responded that he trusted that the right
thing was being done. He added we are all on thne gdaying field, and wants honesty and fairness.

Mr. Poelaert reminded Reid that when he came ithigryear’s budget and Matthew Dworman asked for
3% salaries, you put in for 10% for yourself, add tr Ray, which was more than 3%.

Mr. Poelaert offered that if I'm not happy with yduwould ask you to have coffee and see me to tdék
added he doesn't like the animosity. You could hasied the question before now. No one is
stonewalling here. We will get you an answer.

Roby added that transparent and responsive is gt®ddded that is the biggest problem. Roby infakrme
them that Hampton Falls provided a detailed handbthieir budget hearing, and they have a sim2a $
million dollar budget. He suggested the Town adbptsame method.

Roby inquired if the wages will be included in thewn Report, as it is Hanks’ understanding that it
won't be in it. He added it was in every year ptimr1993. The Selectmen acknowledged that they
approved it to be put in the 2009 report.

Mr. Pendell stated Roby left in 2000, how come ig&'tl put it in when he was Selectman?

Roby stated he finds fault with the Board of Setesn that they didn’t know the budget like when e d
it.

Mr. Poelaert stated the Board accepts the budgetsheets, and there is good fiscal management to
prove the numbers.

Roby responded that it is the governing body thaukl understand the budget. The auditors are
monkeys with a pencil.

Mr. Pendell noted the Town has grown, and the buldag grown. Roby responded it is still a smallriow
and in the bottom 1/3 for size in the State.

Mr. Pendell stated they are criticized by the Défatads if they don’t trust them. They trust therhity
Trustees. Mr. Pendell noted for example, when kedReid about references, etc. for his new officer
Reid responded, “What, you don’t trust me? Youustherust me as a department head.”

Mr. Poelaert added over the years different reduat®e disappeared. For example, some years the™run

from the fire department have been included, ahdrotears, it has not.

Roby reminded them that they are answerable todters. They need to get the information from the
Dept. Heads.

Mr. Pendell noted there are only 5 people hereobd@P00 that are making a complaint. He added tivo o
the employees live out of Town, and Roby wantedthet to confuse them with employees of the Town.

Mr. Poelaert noted they are raising this issue,thag have no problem with supplying them with the
answers.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 6



Mr. Poelaert agreed that they as Selectmen cartterpand Roby added he wants them to look a¢tbett
hands on management.

Roby admitted that when he was on the Planningddhat no one goes to Planning Board meetings.
Roby wants the Selectmen to be trusted, and to lead

Sharon Day stated that the first thing is that Hasiked, and the"2question raised is the curiosity
between full-time and part-time employees.

It was noted that the budget worksheets were peavid Ray Marquis, as he requested. Roby noted that
the worksheets don’t show all of the information jtsshowed a red flag to him. He stated that the
information from LGC is greatly distorted from thermal, and when asked if he would provide the
information to the Selectmen, Roby responded youpesl it up yourself from LGC.

Mr. Poelaert stated that they are not Clerks ore&acges, they are Administrative Assistants, ahemv
they compared that, they didn’t look that bad. They not secretaries or clerk/typists.

He added for example, that there are nurses, bay ciferent levels like RN's and LPN’s, etc. Thene
different categories.

Roby insisted that in the overall picture, thera tsemendous disparity. He added what is genepally
throughout the State, as a small town; we candrdfit. He added all residents are paying taxes.

Mr. Poelaert noted that there is a warrant artitie year that the Town Clerk wants to go from {hinie
to full-time. His added full-time status is a bigyp with adding full-time benefits, and that isaatfof
life.

Roby asked them to look at the LGC numbers. Heis&@dvay out of whack.

It was noted Matthew Dworman will be back in Town124/2010.

Roby Day asked the Board to let them know how thelly salary will be recorded in the Town Report.

He urged them to get outside help to structuregalad benefits and diffuse any concerns with tharB
of Selectmen. He added he wanted every public eraplon the Town Report to be accurate.

Roby thanked the Board members.

Reid Simpson provided a Right To Know Request toRtrelaert. Mr. Poelaert noted they have five days
to respond, and he can pick up the information ftbenSelectmen’s Office.

Roby Day stated that he will be bringing in the Stae of the Trust Funds documentation to the
Selectmen’s Office for the audit tomorrow, and wlilbp off a copy of what Hampton Falls provided at
their budget hearing.

Reid Simpson stated he has a right to know, inolyidion-public meeting minutes. Mr. Pendell noted
sealed non-public meeting minutes are not public.

Mr. Poelaert stated they would check with Town Galnpand Reid Simpson responded you don’t have to
pay Town Counsel, just read the statute.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 7



Mr. Pendell noted he wants to be very careful with-public meetings. This issue has been addressed
before.

Roby inquired about how much the Town pays Townr@el he has heard $600 per hour. Mr. Pendell
responded it is certainly is not $600, he addéntore like $165-$175 per hour.

Roby noted that Hampton Falls also uses the samérla, Upton & Hatfield.

At 8:00PM, they decided they were done. Mr. Po¢laered that they will put some information
together, and Roby added that they are trying tand@rmation together for the deliberative session

Roby & Sharon Day, Barbara Clark, Judy Cash, and Renpson left the meeting.

LEGAL: The Board was updated with information regardingesal legal cases, of which no action was
required by the Board for any of the items.

Barbara White asked if she could add something?Bda@d members agreed. Barbara White stated that
the girls in the office do an excellent job. Thépsld be compensated for their work. She stated she
doesn’'t have nearly the knowledge or responsiédithat they have, and would not expect to get paid
what they are paid.

Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to adjourn 8:25PM. Mr. Pendell seconded. Motiomied 2-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah G. Gallant
Administrative Assistant

Matthew B. Dworman Racth S. Poelaert David R. Pénde

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes January 19, 2010 — 20100119selpubmin 8



